
 
 

 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Cabinet 

Date: Tuesday, 27th October, 2020 
Time: 5.30 pm. 
Venue: Zoom Meeting 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 

1   Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2   Declarations of Interest   

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 

or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 

those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

3   Urgent Items of Business   

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 

which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 

be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

4   Items for Exclusion of Public and Press   

 To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 

be excluded from the meeting. 

 

5   Minutes  4 - 12 

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 29th 

September 2020. 

 

 

Public Document Pack



6   Climate Emergency - Governance framework  13 - 22 

 To consider the report of the Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for 

Climate Change and Sustainability/Director of Neighbourhoods  

 

7   Supplier Payment Terms  23 - 24 

 To consider the report of the Portfolio Holder for Corporate 

Delivery/Director of Resources 

 

8   Exclusion of Press and Public   

 To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 

part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 

likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 

Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 

interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

 

9   Contingency Homeless Accommodation  25 - 34 

 To consider the report of the Portfolio Holder for Quality of 

Place/Director of Neighbourhoods 

 

10   External Grant Funding Awarded for Regeneration Schemes  35 - 42 

 
 
 
 
 

To consider the report of the Portfolio Holder for a Thriving 

Economy/Director of Economy 

 
Cabinet Members 
Councillor Daalat Ali Councillor Allen Brett 
Councillor Neil Emmott Councillor Janet Emsley 
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Councillor John Blundell 
Councillor Kieran Heakin Councillor Sara Rowbotham 
Councillor Carol Wardle  

 

For more information about this meeting, please contact:  
Alison James – Committee and Constitutional Services  
 
Telephone: 01706 924711 
E-mail: alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk  
 

 



CABINET 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Tuesday 29th September 2020 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Brett (Chair); Councillors Daalat Ali, Emsley, 
Iftikhar Ahmed, Heakin, Rowbotham and Wardle 
 
OFFICERS:  Steve Rumbelow (Chief Executive), Neil Thornton (Director of 
Resources), Mark Widdup (Director of Neighbourhoods), Gail Hopper 
(Director of Children’s Services), John Searle (Director of Economy), Andrea 
Fallon (Director of Public Health), Julie Murphy (Chief Finance Officer), 
Samantha Smith (Deputy Chief Finance Officer), Fay Davies (Children’s 
Services Directorate), Nick Barton and Abigail Mills (Economy Directorate) 
and Alison James (Resources Directorate) 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Linda Robinson and Councillor Dearnley 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
 

36 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Blundell and Councillor 
Neil Emmott. 
 

37 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

38 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
There were no urgent items of business. 
 

39 MINUTES 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 25th August 2020 
be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 

 
40 OBJECTION TO TRAFFIC ORDERS - BURY AND ROCHDALE OLD ROAD, 

ROCHDALE 
Resolved: 
 

1. That this item be withdrawn from Agenda to enable further discussion 
to take place between the Portfolio Holder and Townships and that it be 
referred back to Townships as necessary following those discussions. 

 
41 SECTION 106 FORMAL SPORT 

Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Economy seeking approval for 
the allocation of Section 106 Formal Sport contributions to be allocated to a 
project at Heywood St. James FC (Phoenix Park). 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



Alternatives considered: 
 
The Council is required to spend s106 Formal Sport contributions in 
accordance with legal agreements and local and national planning policy. Not 
delivering projects as set out in s106 legal agreements would result in 
contributions being returned to developers and a loss of facilities for residents 
of the borough. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the allocation of funds from relevant Section 106 receipts to 
support the replacement of changing facilities at Heywood St. James 
FC (Phoenix Park) as detailed within the report be approved. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
 
In accordance with the relevant Council policies, the allocation of s106 Formal 
Sport contributions received from new residential developments are 
considered on a strategic and Boroughwide basis. As such, when the specific 
use of the contribution is not agreed in the Section 106 agreement, this 
requires Cabinet approval. 
 
The recommendations relating to the allocation of Formal Sport contributions 
in this report are guided by the Playing Pitch Strategy in consultation with 
elected member for the wards in which the contributions are generated. 
 

42 ADOPTION OF REVISED STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 
Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Economy which advised that 
the Government had released updated planning guidance encouraging Local 
Planning Authorities to update their Statement of Community (SCI) as soon as 
possible to allow plan making to progress during the Covid-19 outbreak. 
 
The Councils current SCI, adopted in October 2019, sets out how the local 
community may be involved when preparing key planning policy documents 
and determining planning applications. It is important, in the interests of clarity 
for stakeholders and to avoid the potential for legal challenge, that the SCI is 
up to date and reflects present national planning legislation and the Council’s 
own current procedures. 
 
The draft revised SCI was published for public consultation for a period of six 
weeks from 13th July 2020 to 24th August 2020 to allow for stakeholders and 
members of the public to comment and provide input. The report outlined the 
consultation responses and any proposed changes. The SCI document was 
recommended for adoption. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
It is a legal requirement for the Council to produce a SCI and to carry out 
consultation on planning policies and planning applications in line with the 
SCI. The only alternative possible would be to not adopt the revised SCI; 

Page 4



failure to adopt an up to date SCI could leave the Council open to legal 
challenge. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the representations and officers’ responses to representations 
received following consultation and the proposed changes to the SCI 
be noted; 

2. That the adoption of the revised SCI (August 2020) be approved. 
 
Reasons for the decision: 
 
Section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires local 
planning authorities to produce a Statement of Community Involvement, which 
should explain how they will engage local communities and other interested 
parties in producing their Local Plan and determining planning applications. 
 

43 INCLUSIVE SKILLS, WORK AND HEALTH PLAN 2021-2023 
Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Economy which presented the 
Inclusive Skills, Work and Health Plan setting out the need to support the 
borough’s adult population and business community to be able to take 
advantage of the economic growth opportunities identified in the recently 
adopted Borough Growth Plan 
 
The Plan recognises the co-dependency between health and employment, 
and the role skills plays in securing better employment and earning better 
wages. 
 
The Plan aims to maximise the benefits for Rochdale of the significant 
budgets devolved to Greater Manchester and recognises that this brings 
opportunities as well as challenges. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
The alternative of not having a cohesive and comprehensive Plan would lead 
to an un-co-ordinated, inefficient and ineffective range of skills, employment 
and health activities by the private, public and voluntary sector, that do not 
meet the needs of borough residents or businesses. The lack of a Plan 
hinders the ability of the Council to bid for external funding to support our 
objectives. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the Inclusive Skills, Work and Health Plan 2021-2023 be 
approved; 

2. That the levers at the council’s disposal to contribute to the objectives 
in the Plan be supported. 
 
 

 

Page 5



Reasons for the decision: 
 
The borough’s skills, employment and health levels are below the Greater 
Manchester average on most of the key indicators. Significant economic 
growth opportunities have been identified in the borough’s Growth Plan and it 
is important that these directly benefit borough residents. There is substantial 
evidence to link being out of work with poorer physical and mental health 
conditions, risks of homelessness and higher mortality rates. If everyone had 
a decent job, health outcomes would improve significantly and inequalities 
reduce. 
 

44 FINANCIAL UPDATE (PERIOD 4) 2020/2021 
Cabinet considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer which presented 
the Council’s forecast 2020/21 financial position as at the end of July 2020. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is 
critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and 
are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 
identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 
action. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That Cabinet the forecast 2020/21 financial positions for Revenue, 
Capital, and the Collection Fund as at the end of July 2020 be noted; 

2. That the utilisation of the 3rd tranche of emergency Covid 19 funding of 
£2,416k detailed in section 4.1.1. of the report be approved; 

3. That the forecast Health & Social Care Pool Budget position as detailed 
in section 4.2. of the report be noted; 

4. That the Budget Pressure requests in section 4.3 of the report be 
approved; 

5. That the procurement process in relation to the use of the Insurance 
Reserve for the Town Hall restoration project be approved; 

6. That the forecast unachieved savings target in section 4.4 of the report 
be noted; 

7. That the net Capital budget changes of £2,277k detailed in section 
4.6.2 of the report be noted; 

8. That the Capital re-phasing of £23,407k detailed in section 4.6.3. of the 
report be noted; 

9. That the request to change the use of Capital Budget as detailed in 
section 4.6.5. of the report be approved. 

10. That the forecast 2020/21 Collection Fund position detailed in section 
4.7 of the report be noted. 
 
 
 

 

Page 6



Reasons for the decision: 
 
Cabinet Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the 
authority, as effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial 
resources are spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the 
Council’s priorities. 
 
The report focuses on the forecast 2020/21 financial position as at the end 
July 2020. 
 

45 REVENUE BUDGET 2021/22 TO 2023/24 AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
2021/22 TO 2025/26 
Cabinet considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer which presented 
updates on the Revenue Budget 2021/22 to 2023/24 and the Council’s 
Medium Term Financial Strategy; to outline proposed changes to the 
Council’s Capital Programme 2020/21 and to outline the Council’s proposed 
Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2025/26, as a basis for consultation. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget. The budget setting 
process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. It is equally 
important that assumptions used in the preparation of the budget are agreed, 
reasonable and consistently applied by all services. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the updated Revenue Budget position 2021/22 to 2023/24 be 
noted; 

2. That the Council’s updated Medium Term Financial Strategy be noted; 
3. That the proposed changes to the Capital Programme 2020/21 as 

detailed in the report be approved; 
4. That the Capital Programme 2021/22, and provisional programmes for 

2022/23 to 2025/26, be approved as a basis for consultation, subject to 
confirmation of grant funding allocations, as detailed in Appendix 3 of 
the report. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
 
Cabinet members are required to recommend a balanced 2021/22 Revenue 
Budget to Budget Council, and provisional budgets for 2022/23 to 2023/24. 
The Council is required to set a balanced budget for 2021/22 by 11th March 
2021. 
 
The Revenue budget, Medium Term Financial Strategy Capital Programme 
provide key parts of the budget setting process.  
 

46 DISCRETIONARY FEES AND CHARGES 2021/2022 
Cabinet considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer which advised that 
Discretionary Fees and Charges are reviewed on an annual basis. At Cabinet 

Page 7



28th July a 2% general increase in Discretionary Fees and Charges for 
2021/22 was agreed for planning purposes, subject to exemptions to be 
agreed. 
 
This report detailed the proposed Discretionary Fees and Charges for 
2021/22, as a basis for consultation, and detailed those charges proposed to 
be exempt from the general 2% increase. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
The alternative is not to review or increase our fees and charges. This would 
potentially reduce the income available to the Council and make it more 
difficult to achieve a balanced budget. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the updated Discretionary Fees and Charges for 2020/21, as 
detailed within the report, be approved as a basis for consultation; 

 
2. That the charges exempt from the general 2% increase, as set out in 

paragraph 4.3.of the report be approved. 
 

Reasons for the decision: 
 
The fees and charges in the report have been proposed by each Directorate, 
taking into account the 2% general uplift in Discretionary Fees and Charges 
agreed at Cabinet on 28th July 2020. 
 
It was recommended not to apply a 2% increase to the fees and charges 
detailed in paragraph 4.3. of the report. 
 

47 NEED FOR PRIMARY SCHOOL PLACES 2021 - 2024 
Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Children’s Services which 
provided details about the need for Primary School Places 2021-2024. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
Alternatives are constantly under review and any impacts of the current 
pandemic on house building rates or timing of new developments will have 
knock on effects on school capacity. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the expansion of the Primary school estate as detailed within the 
report be supported; 

2. That the opening of a consultation on proposals to address the need for 
extra Reception places be approved; 

3. That the provision of a new Primary school needed as part of the 
junction 19 development, which will be required to be provided through 

Page 8



developer contributions and using the Free school Presumption route 
be noted; 

4. That the capital expenditure on bulge classes in north Pennines and 
Middleton be approved. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
 
The council has a statutory duty to provide education and school places to all 
school aged children living in the borough and consequently has a duty to 
plan adequately for predicted pupil numbers. 
 
Current housing development plans along with the housing allocations defined 
in the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework, GMSF (currently still under 
consultation) dictate that pupil numbers in Rochdale may continue to grow in 
some localities and plans must be put in place to create the needed school 
capacity. New housing build rates have been above those required to be 
delivered by the GMSF for two years. 
 
Parental choice creates a situation where parents who can, are more likely to 
travel longer distances to school, this means that spare capacity is more likely 
to be concentrated in fewer schools and consequently over supply of school 
places is a consideration. Falling birth rates and increased housing mean that 
places are constantly under review. 
 

48 SECONDARY SCHOOL PLACES 2021 AND 2022 
Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Children’s Services which 
provided details about the need for Secondary School Places 2021 and 2022. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
The council must meet its statutory duty to offer all borough pupils a place in 
Secondary schools and the report details the preferred option of the early 
opening of the Edgar Wood Academy and the backup plan for additional 
capacity. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the release of funds from Basic Need capital funding to deliver 
additional places at Wardle Academy for 2021 and 2022 as detailed in 
appendix 1. of the report be approved; 

2. That it be noted that the delivery of much needed Secondary schools 
through the central government Free School programme leaves the 
council dependent on timings and decisions by central government with 
regards to the delivery of those schools, and consequently puts at risk 
delivery of its statutory duty to offer a school place to every child living 
in the borough; 

3. That the release of funds from Basic Need capital funding to meet the 
need to deliver 120 additional places for September 2021 in existing 
borough Secondary schools, as detailed in appendix 1. Of the report be 
approved; 

Page 9



4. That the release of funds from Basic Need capital funding to support 
the delivery of the new Edgar Wood academy be approved, if the DfE 
deem that the early opening in temporary accommodation is 
deliverable for 2021. 

 
Reasons for the Decision: 
 
The council has a statutory duty to offer every pupil living in the borough, who 
applies, a Secondary school place. Where the council offers a school place 
that is over the statutory “safe walking distance” for the age of that child the 
council is required to provide free school transport. Because bus transport in 
the area is provided through Transport for Greater Manchester, any child 
offered a school place, which is over the statutory distance criteria, is offered 
a free bus pass that is provided from council funds. The council receives no 
central government funding for school bus transport. 
 
The council does receive Basic Need funding to provide additional school 
places for both permanent and temporary school building expansions and 
bulge classes. The allocation of Basic Need funding from central government 
is reported annually to the council Cabinet and the report this year was 
approved on 31st March 2020. 
 
A shortage of Secondary school places is forecast for 2021 and 2022 intakes, 
and for school intakes in every following year until the time that the two new 
mainstream school are delivered. 
 

49 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
Resolved: 
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following thee items of business, in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 
 
Reasons for the decision: 
Should the press and public remain there may be a disclosure of information 
that is deemed to be exempt under Parts 1 and 4 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972. 
 

50 SECONDARY SCHOOL PROVISION - 2021 AND 2022 
Cabinet considered the restricted appendix to the report of the Director of 
Children’s Services which provided details about the need for Secondary 
School Places 2021 and 2022. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
The council must meet its statutory duty to offer all borough pupils a place in 
Secondary schools and the report details the preferred option of the early 
opening of the Edgar Wood Academy and the backup plan for additional 
capacity. 
 
 

Page 10



Resolved: 
 

1. That the funding allocations for schemes as detailed in the appendix to 
the report be noted. 

 
Reasons for the Decision: 
 
The council has a statutory duty to offer every pupil living in the borough, who 
applies, a Secondary school place. Where the council offers a school place 
that is over the statutory “safe walking distance” for the age of that child the 
council is required to provide free school transport. Because bus transport in 
the area is provided through Transport for Greater Manchester, any child 
offered a school place, which is over the statutory distance criteria, is offered 
a free bus pass that is provided from council funds. The council receives no 
central government funding for school bus transport. 
 
The council does receive Basic Need funding to provide additional school 
places for both permanent and temporary school building expansions and 
bulge classes. The allocation of Basic Need funding from central government 
is reported annually to the council Cabinet and the report this year was 
approved on 31st March 2020. 
 
A shortage of Secondary school places is forecast for 2021 and 2022 intakes, 
and for school intakes in every following year until the time that the two new 
mainstream school are delivered. 
 

51 LITTLEBOROUGH PRIMARY SCHOOL 
Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Children’s Services relating to 
Littleborough Primary School being included in the Priority School Building 
Programme. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
The school site could be retained as it is and it may come forward at a later 
date if a further round of the Priority School Building Programme occurs. 
Mitigation works currently being carried out will need ongoing maintenance 
and will incur considerable expenditure to Council buildings, Link4Life and 
schools. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the recommendations detailed within the report be supported and 
approved. 

 
Reasons for the recommendation: 
 
To provide facilities on the site within the parameters set out within the report. 
 

Page 11



1 
 

Report to Cabinet 
 

 

Date of Meeting 27th October 2020 
Portfolio Deputy Leader & Portfolio 

Holder for Climate 
Change and Sustainability 

Report Author Mark Bramah 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 
Climate Emergency – Governance framework 

 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1.1 The Council declared a Climate Emergency on 17 July 2019 with a 

target to achieve carbon neutrality for the borough and the Council by 
2038 in line with the ambitions for Greater Manchester. 

 
1.2 On 28 January 2020, the Cabinet approved a report by the Director of 

Neighbourhoods setting out the Council’s response to the Climate 
Emergency motion. 

 
1.3 The report proposed governance arrangements for tackling the Climate 

Emergency. This report develops those initial proposals and sets out a 
governance framework for the climate emergency in Rochdale. 
 

 

 

Recommendations 

 
2.1   That the Climate Emergency governance framework as set out below and in 

Appendix 1 be approved. 
 

2.2    That the proposed membership and Terms of Reference of the Climate Emergency 
Working Group set out at Appendix 2 be approved. 

 
2.3    That the criteria for approving capital funding under the climate emergency set out 

at Appendix 3 be approved. 
 

 

Reason for Recommendations 

 
3.1    In order for the Council to begin to make effective progress in meeting its climate 

change commitments and objectives, there has to be an appropriate governance 
framework established for developing the Climate Change Action Plan; co-
ordinating sectoral work on climate change across the borough; ensuring 
effective citizen and community engagement with co-design and co-benefits; and 
approving expenditure under the capital allocation for climate change work. 

 
 
 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



2 
 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1   The report on the response to the Climate Emergency which was approved by   

Cabinet on 28 January 2020 (Minute 68) approved the:  
 

 draft Climate Emergency Strategy “Our plan of action for the planet” for 
consultation; 

 membership of the proposed Climate Emergency Working Group;  

 draft terms of reference to be agreed by the Working Group once formed; 
and  

 that the Climate Emergency Working Group once established would be 
tasked to agree the final Climate Change Strategy and produce a detailed 
climate emergency action plan. 

 
4.2   It is important to establish a clear governance framework for dealing with the 

climate emergency. Appendix 1 sets out in a schematic the proposed 
governance framework which builds on the decisions taken by Cabinet on 28 
January. 

 
4.3    The key elements of the approach are as follows: 

 
4.3.1  Climate Emergency Working Group - Its main purpose is to develop the 

Climate Change Strategy and prepare a Climate Change Action Plan for 
approval by Cabinet and by the Council and to co-ordinate the sectoral 
workstreams. The proposed membership of the Working Group is set out at 
Appendix 2 together with proposed terms of reference. 

 
       4.3.2   Workstreams – The workstreams are intended to reflect the main areas for 

decarbonisation across the borough and include co-benefits identified in the 
draft Climate Change Strategy. It is intended that these are sector led and 
develop a coherent programme which can form part of the Climate Change 
Action Plan. The lead/co-ordinators of the workstreams should be 
members on the Climate Emergency Working Group. 

 
4.3.3 Climate Change Action Plan - To deliver the borough’s climate change 

objectives. The action plan should cover short, medium, and long-term 
objectives and actions over the following timescales: 

 
 2020 – 2025 short-term actions but linked to the Greater Manchester 

Environment Plan. 
 2025 – 2030 medium-term actions but with 2030 as a key date in 

terms of keeping climate change to within the 1.5c global temperature 
rise beyond which climate scientists and the UN are warning would 
lead to catastrophic and irreversible climate change. 

 2030-2038 - Long-term actions which also broadly incorporates the 
Council’s own net zero carbon ambitions. 
 

4.3.4 The action plan should be is rolled forward every 5-years so that it still 
reflects a 5,10, 18-year time frame. 
 

  
 

Page 13



3 
 

4.3.5 Citizen/Community engagement – Ongoing and effective 
citizen/community engagement is a critically important element of the 
journey to net zero. It has the potential to build consensus to deliver radical 
low carbon policies together with the co-design of policies and programmes. 
It can also help to tackle inequality and enable a just energy transition. This 
is set out in the Ashden toolkit Climate action co-benefits: Cutting carbon 
and improving people’s lives1  

 
4.3.6 The proposal to establish a Citizens Assembly/Jury on Climate Change 

will be dealt with in a separate report. 
 

4.3.7 Cabinet and Council – The Climate Change Action Plan is a plan for the 
whole borough, but needs to have broad political and corporate support 
across the Council as it will impact on all aspects of the Council’s role in 
terms of stewardship of place and as a service provider/enabler. 

 
4.3.8 Overview and Scrutiny – The important role of O&S is to scrutinise the 

Climate Change Action Plan and to ensure that the Council is meeting its 
aims and objectives set out in the plan to get to net zero carbon by 2038. 

 
4.4    Capital funding - Alongside the action plan there is a need to determine a process 

for recommending expenditure under the 5-year capital allocation approved by 
Cabinet and the Council. The Council already has procedures in place under its 
constitution for approving schemes through its capital programme. But given 
demands on limited resources, it is considered that there should be some 
additional criteria for approval of expenditure from the available pot of money. 
Suggested criteria for approval of schemes is shown at Appendix 3. 

 
4.5  This report is intended to set out the governance framework for the climate 

emergency in Rochdale and progressing the Council’s ambitions to achieve 
carbon neutrality by 2038. It is not intended to be prescriptive and elements of 
the framework (e.g. workstreams) can be developed further in relation to 
appropriate categories shown at Appendix 1. 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1  Capital funding of £5m has been agreed as part of the Council’s Capital 

Programme and covers the period 2020-2026. All costs incurred as part of 
tackling Climate Emergency will be funded from this existing budget.  

 
5.2 There are additional resource implications in terms of staff time and input 

involved   in supporting the work of the Climate Emergency Working Group and 
the identified workstreams which need to be determined but all costs will be 
funded from the existing capital budget allocated. 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1    Without establishing an agreed governance and decision-making framework it is 

likely that work to tackle climate change will be delayed and that existing 
 
 

                                                           
1 https://www.ashden.org/programmes/co-benefits  

Page 14

https://www.ashden.org/programmes/co-benefits


4 
 

programmes and projects will be undertaken in a piecemeal and un-coordinated 
manner. 

 
6.2    The key risk is that unless the Council can make progress, it will fail to meet its 

commitment to decarbonise the borough set out in the Climate Emergency 
Declaration of 17 July 2019. 

 

Consultation 

 
7. The following consultation has taken place: 
Director of Neighbourhoods 
Head of Policy & Performance 
Leadership Team 
Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Health and Wellbeing 
  

Virement 
for public 
consultation 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

Report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods to Cabinet on 
the response to the Climate 
Emergency 28 January 2020 
 
Draft Climate Emergency 
Strategy – ‘Our Planet our 
Future 2020-25’ 

http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk  

 
 

For Further Information Contact: Mark Bramah  
Mark.Bramah@Rochdale.Gov.UK  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15

http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/
mailto:Mark.Bramah@Rochdale.Gov.UK


5 
 

Appendix 1 – Diagram of proposed governance framework 

 

P
age 16



6 
 

 

Workstreams - Illustration of relevant subject categories by workstream 

P
age 17



7 
 

P
age 18



8 
 

Appendix 2 – Membership of the Climate Emergency Working 

Group and draft Terms of Reference of the Climate Emergency 

Working Group  

 

A. Climate Emergency Working Group membership 
 

 Chair – Portfolio Holder/Lead member for Climate Change. 
 3 additional elected members – 1 from each of the main party groups 

(Labour, Conservative, Liberal Democrat). 
 8 sectoral leads - 1 from each of the proposed workstreams. 
 1 Member of the Youth Parliament. 
 2 residents. 
 3 Strategic Partners – 1 each from Housing, Leisure, Health. 
 Director of Neighbourhoods 
 Action Together (may also be a sectoral lead organisation) 
 Climate Emergency Business Group (may also be a sectoral lead 

organisation). 
 

The working group should have the power to co-opt additional expertise and 

support either from the workstreams or external to the council. This could 

include for instance academic/professional/business support, young people, 

community/co-operative organisations. 

 

The working group should be supported by officers of the Council in particular 

policy, legal, finance and communications. 

 

B. Proposed Terms of Reference 
 

Carbon Emissions Targets 

 To consider and recommend the development of new carbon emissions 
reduction targets for the Council beyond 2020. 

 To keep under review any agreed targets by sector and make 
recommendations about priorities for action and implementation. 
 

Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan 

 To review the Council’s Climate Emergency Strategy and make any 
consequent recommendations for changes to the Cabinet. 

 To develop a Climate Change Action Plan 2020-2038 for approval by 
Cabinet and by the Council. 

 To set up and coordinate relevant workstreams with ‘task and finish groups’ 
to contribute to the development of the Climate Change Action Plan. 

 To keep the Climate Change Action Plan under review and to propose any 
changes required to meet the Council’s carbon emissions reductions 
targets. 
 

 

 

Page 19



9 
 

Citizen and Community Engagement 

 To put in place such arrangements as are necessary to ensure effective 
consultation and engagement with citizens and communities across the 
Rochdale Borough, including a Citizens Assembly/Jury. 

 To ensure that co-design and co-benefits form an integral part of the 
approach to engagement and tackling the climate emergency. 

 To ensure that co-benefits and the outcomes of engagement are 
incorporated into the Climate Change Action Plan. 

 To develop a programme of carbon literacy so that individuals, communities, 
and organisations have greater ownership and awareness of the impact of 
actions to tackle climate change. 
 

Rochdale Borough Council Carbon Neutral Target 

 To review and monitor all existing and planned activities to meet the 
Council’s own 2038 carbon neutral commitment.  

 To propose any new actions to achieve that target, drawing out budgetary 
and other resource implications for the Council and the Borough.  

 To ensure that all services and activities are climate resilient in how they 
operate. 
 

Best Practice 

 To consider innovation and good practice from other cities, towns, and local 
authorities from the UK and internationally and where appropriate make 
recommendations about adopting similar measures for Rochdale.  
 

Advocacy 

 To consider how the powers which city and regional agencies currently 
possess can be better used to achieve the above and where further asks 
need to be made of national government.  

 To work collaboratively with GMCA and the other Greater Manchester 
districts to achieve the Council’s Climate Change objectives. 
 

Social Inclusion 

 To ensure that the Climate Change Action Plan and measures taken to 
address climate change address inequalities across the Borough’s 
communities. This should include addressing fuel/food poverty, ensuring 
that disadvantaged communities are not expected to meet any 
disproportionate costs arising from the energy transition and that there is 
equitable access to resources and support for all communities.  

 To ensure that communities are resilient to Climate Change by developing 
approaches that mitigate the impact on the natural environment.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



10 
 

Appendix 3 - Draft criteria for approval of Funding from the Climate 

Change Capital allocation 

 

 Is consistent with actions set out in the Climate Change Action Plan. 

 Has a significant impact on agreed carbon emissions reductions targets for 
the borough and/or the Council’s own corporate estate. 

 Increases the resilience of the borough, its economy, and communities to 
environmental risks from climate change. 

 Can be match funded by additional grants or investment to support net zero 
carbon ambitions. 

 Has the potential to generate sustainable revenue streams to support net 
zero carbon ambitions. 

 Supports social value objectives including local economic, social, and 
environmental wellbeing. 

 Aligns with Sustainable Development Goals and the Greater Manchester 
Environment Plan. 

 

Page 21



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

 

Date of Meeting 27th October 2020 
Portfolio Corporate Delivery 
Report Author Samantha Smith 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Supplier Payment Terms 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. To provide Cabinet with an update on current supplier payment terms and ask 

that Cabinet approves the return to standard supplier payment terms of 30 
days, alongside the resumption of the Priority Account Service, early payment 
programme. 

 

Recommendation 

 
2. Cabinet approves the resumption of standard supplier payment terms of 30 

days, from 1st November 2020. 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. 
 
 
 
 
 
3.1 
 
 
3.2 

Following a Cabinet Office Procurement Policy Note (PPN) in March 2020, an 
urgent Chief Executive decision was made to pay of all Suppliers as quickly as 
practicably possible, on immediate payment terms. This was in direct 
response to the COVID-19 outbreak, with the intention of ensuring service 
continuity and supporting Suppliers to the Council. 
 
The initial PPN covered the period to 30th June 2020, followed by a further 
PPN, extending the period until 31st October 2020. 
 
It is now necessary to revert to standard supplier payment terms of 30 days 
from 1st November 2020. 
 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
 
 

Prior to the urgent decision made in March 2020, the Council’s standard 
supplier payment terms were 30 days. In response the COVID-19 outbreak, 
Cabinet Office advised public sector organisations to move to immediate 
payment terms in order to assist Suppliers. This advice expires on 31st 
October 2020. 
 

Page 22

Agenda Item 7



4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.3 

At Cabinet on 18th March 2019, Members approved the establishment of an 
Early Payment Programme, potentially delivering net income of up to £750k 
over a 5 year period. For this programme to maximise income, suppliers will 
be offered the ability to receive early payment, in exchange for a small rebate 
of their invoice value. Suppliers choosing not to join the scheme, will be paid 
on standard 30 day terms. 
 
Local Suppliers, where their payment address is within the Borough, will be 
able to receive early payment for free, without payment of a rebate. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
Not reverting standard supplier payment terms to 30 days. This would 
compromise the viability the Early Payment Scheme. This option would result 
in a budget pressure of £120k as a saving has already been included within 
this financial year. £80k which relates to the loss of income from April to 31st 
October has been included within the Covid-19 cost pressures and reported to 
Cabinet in the P4 Finance Update. 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. 
 
5.1 

No direct costs.  
 
As referred to at 4.1, the Early Payment Programme may potentially deliver 
net income of up to £750k over a 5 year period. The expected rebate for this 
Financial Year is £120k reduced down to £40k due to the later start of 
November. 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. Standard supplier payment terms would be set at 30 days. 

 

Consultation 

 
7. Not applicable. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. For further information about this 
report or access to any 
background papers contact  

Sam Smith, 
Number One Riverside, Floor 2 

 

For Further Information Contact: Samantha Smith, 
samantha.smith@rochdale.gov.uk 
Tel : 01706 924198 

 

Page 23



Document is Restricted

Page 24

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 34

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Climate Emergency - Governance framework
	7 Supplier Payment Terms
	9 Contingency Homeless Accommodation
	10 External Grant Funding Awarded for Regeneration Schemes

